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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

MARSHALL DIVISION
EHIERARCHY, LLC )
)
Plaintiff, )
) Civil Action No. 2:16-cv-564
v. )
) JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
MICROSOFT CORPORATION )
)
Defendant. )
)
COMPLAINT

For its Complaint, Plaintiff eHierarchy, LLC ("eHierarchy"), by and through the
undersigned counsel, alleges as follows:

THE PARTIES

1. eHierarchy is a Texas limited liability company with a place of business located at
1400 Preston Road, Suite 400, Plano, Texas 75093.

2. Defendant Microsoft Corporation is a Washington company with, upon
information and belief, a place of business located at 7000 SR-161, Irving, Texas 75039.

3. Upon information and belief, Defendant has registered with the Texas Secretary

of State to conduct business in Texas.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
4. This action arises under the Patent Act, 35 U.S.C. § 1 ef seq.
5. Subject matter jurisdiction is proper in this Court under 28 U.S.C.
§§ 1331 and 1338.
6. Upon information and belief, Defendant conducts substantial business in this

forum, directly or through intermediaries, including: (i) at least a portion of the infringements
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alleged herein; and (i) regularly doing or soliciting business, engaging in other persistent courses
of conduct and/or deriving substantial revenue from goods and services provided to individuals
in this district.

7. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to §§ 1391(b), (c) and 1400(b).

THE PATENTS-IN-SUIT

8. On September 25, 2007, U.S. Patent No. 7,275,063 (the "'063 patent"), entitled
"Computer System For Automatic Organization, Indexing and Viewing of Information From
Multiple Sources," was duly and lawfully issued by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. A
true and correct copy of the '063 patent is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

9. On January 5, 2016, U.S. Patent No. 9,229,945 (the "'945 patent"), entitled
"Computer System For Automatic Organization, Indexing and Viewing of Information From
Multiple Sources," was duly and lawfully issued by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. A
true and correct copy of the '063 patent is attached hereto as Exhibit B.

10. On November 23, 2010, U.S. Patent No. 7,840,619 (the "'619 patent"), entitled
"Computer System For Automatic Organization, Indexing and Viewing of Information From
Multiple Sources," was duly and lawfully issued by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. A
true and correct copy of the '063 patent is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

11. On October 2, 2012, U.S. Patent No. 8,280,932 (the "'932 patent"), entitled
"Computer System For Automatic Organization, Indexing and Viewing of Information From
Multiple Sources," was duly and lawfully issued by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. A
true and correct copy of the '063 patent is attached hereto as Exhibit D.

12. eHierarchy is the assignee and owner of the right, title and interest in and to the

'063, '945, '619 and '932 patents, including the right to assert all causes of action arising under
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said patents and the right to any remedies for infringement of them.

COUNT I - INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 7,275.063

13. eHierarchy repeats and realleges the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 12 as if
fully set forth herein.

14. Without license or authorization and in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a), Defendant
is liable for infringement of at least claim 1 of the '063 patent by making, using, importing,
offering for sale, and/or selling systems and methods of management of informational objects by
a computer system, including, but not limited to, Surface Pro 4, Surface Book and Surface 3.

15.  More specifically and upon information and belief, Defendant's Surface Pro 4,
Surface Book and Surface 3 are computer data processing systems. See
https://www.microsoft.com/surface/en-us (last accessed May 25, 2016). Defendant's Surface
Book has an Intel Core processor ("a central processing unit"), Windows 10 Pro operating
system software (""computer control software system"), a 13.5" display ("computer display") and

it also supports up to 1 TB SSD storage device ("a computer readable memory").

Tech specs

Dimensions 12.30"x 9.14” x 0.51 - 0.90" S[orage1 Solid state drive (SSD) options:
(312.3mm x 232.1mm x 13.0 - 22.8mm) 128GB, 256GB, 512GB, or 1TB.

Display Screen: 13.5" PixelSense™ display Battery life Up to 12 hours of video playback?

Resolution: 3000 x 2000 (267 PPI)

Aspect ratio: 3:2

Touch: 10 point multi-touch Graphics i5: Intel® HD graphics 520
i5/i7: NVIDIA GeForce GPU with 1GB
GDDRS memory

MEInOi'y 8GB or 16GB RAM
Ports * Two full-size USB 3.0
Processor 6th Gen Intel® Core™ i5 or i7 ® Full-size SD™ card reader
® SurfaceConnect™
* Headset jack
Security TPM chip for enterprise security e Mini DisplayPort
Software Windows 10 Pro Cameras, * Windows Hello® face-authentication
Office 30-day trial video and camera (front-facing)

audio ® 5.0MP front-facing camera with 1080p
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Surface Book has a touch screen display and a keyboard/touchpad ("a computer user interface
device") for providing input. See https://www.microsoft.com/surface/en-us/devices/surface-
book#techspec-block (last accessed May 25, 2016). Surface Book comes with pre-installed
People app ("an applications program having component architecture code") that manages
contacts ("information data objects"). See  https://www.microsoft.com/surface/en-
us/support/apps-and-windows-store/all-about-apps?os=windows-10 (last accessed May 25,
2016);  http://www.gcflearnfree.org/windows8/11  (last accessed May 25, 2016);
http://www.thewindowsclub.com/link-unlink-contacts-windows-8-people-app  (last accessed
May 25, 2016). Surface Book with pre-installed People app stores contacts and their details
(e.g., name, email etc.) ("object metadata") in its storage device such that details about a contact
can be viewed by accessing the contact's name entry ("reference objects") in the contact list.
Surface Book with People app stores the contacts and displays them in a desktop style interface
(People App GUI):

People

CONTACTS + HISTORY

| Search

Recent messages and calls with this contact
will show up here,

Microsoft account

A Email Personal
° Andre bob.vermad&7@gmail.com

° Andy
B

o Berry
o Bishop
o Black

When using the People app, a user can input contacts manually or import multiple contacts by

adding multiple accounts like Gmail, etc. ("external sources").
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Add contacts one at a time .
Add or import contacts

Import contacts

1. On Start, tap or click People.
1. On Start, tap or click People.

5. S
2. Swipe in from the bottom edge to see the app commands. 2. Swipe in from the right eclge of the screen, and then tap Settings.
(If you're using a mouse, right-click within the app.) (if you're using a mouse, point to the lower-right corner of the screen, move the mouse pointer up, and then click
Settings.)

3. Tap or click New contact. .
3. Tap or click Accounts.

4. Enter the info you want for this contact, and then tap or click the save button H 4. Tap or click Add an account, choose the type of account you want to add, and then follow the on-screen instructions

When the user adds an account in People app, the app asks the user to select the account and

provide the account details.

Import contacts

; I
x

SETTINGS
Choose an account
= Addan account (2
i —— T
Micrasoft acooust
Contact list display
HE Outlook com
Outhoskom, Lve.com, Hotmail, MSN

Sort contact |kt by

(®) First Name Exchange
Exchange, Office 365
O Surname

-
——
Display names by E Google hat
——
—

@ First mae, Surnane LY ——
52 icioud S———
O sumname, First name 3 ~——
\ -
o e
Filter contact list £ Paopl, cerice ——— <
pick which acoours youll see \\ ) ) e,
SETTINGS \‘\ Google [P w————
About this app \
Microsaft People 10.0.10500.0 H Addd an armﬁe‘l
© 2015 Microsoft Corpomtion. \\
b
Contact list display - Windws wou lke t:
A
Sait contact list by AN
@ First Name ‘\ 1 view o manage por mei @
Ay
'\.\\
O sumene N & ¥now wba yon s Google 0]
Ay
Display names by LY
5 O -
@ First name, Surname \\ - M o email addmss. @
hY
kY
O Surname, First name i\
A Bl Menoge your cammdars @
\\
LY
\\ ¢
. ‘\
About this app
ks . st g Gy e o i
Micragaft Peo ple 1001105000 Errl Perrimaies ol sep b e
© 2015 Microsoft Corporation, 1 W
]
=
All done!

Your account was set up successfully.

[ alicevermaosz@gmail.com
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When the user provides correct account details, the account will be added in People app such that
contacts can be imported from that account, and the app syncs contacts and their details. People
app manages and organizes the contacts from multiple sources (e.g., Gmail and Microsoft

accounts). It provides automatic organization, indexing and viewing of said information objects.

Peaple
CONTACTS -+ = oo
I Search | AD
|5hcml'ng all | --"'""'--__,.___.
\ LN R O
N
\ N
\\
Adam “d
it N,
1 ~,
. \\
Adrian .
\ ) ~——
‘ . ———
° ‘lexander )
\ Filter contacts
i
° Al‘len Hide contacts without phone numbers
1
\ @ on
° AndEI’SDI'I Shows only the contacts that you can call or text. You can still find the rest
‘\ by searching.
1
° Andrd,
‘\‘ Show contacts from
o Andy |\
v \ Gmail

Micrasoft Accolint

For example, the contacts having names starting with "A" are grouped in container "A" and
contacts starting with "B" are grouped in container "B" and so on. At the top of People app, a
"sticky path" is displayed showing the name of a container (e.g., "A") which dynamically

changes when the user scrolls into another group (e.g., contacts corresponding to container "B").
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Penpie

CONTACTS

| Search

+——————

oot Gmal

ail Other

People

CONTACTS

| Search

B

O sy
© sishop
© s
@ Bob
O o=
@ erian
© sricne
@ sums

HISTORY

Recent messages and calls with this contact
will show up here.

Snapshots taken from a Windows
device

HISTORY

Recent messages and calls with this contact
will show up here.

Thus, Surface Book's central processing unit processes by providing, during user scrolling of an

expandable outline in a single window where the contents of multiple branches and multiple

levels of a hierarchy are visible at once, views of objects and their containment relationships or

location paths within said hierarchy in said single window on said display.
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Pecpla

CONTACTS +

| Search

Showing all £y

[A]
° e Pagple

o Adrian  CONTACTS .
o Alexander | search - - |
° Allen A
° Andersan o Andre - reone
o Andre ° Andy ~ CONTACTS
O~ B B
] i
° Bishop e Berry e
O secc @ ssiop

TR
° Berry

TI

[ search |
s Bob ° Black .
[ -
e Bran ° Bishop
° Brian ° Black
-

° Briene
Bran

° Brian
° Eriene
0 sume
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HISTORY

Recent messages and calls with this contact
will shew up here,

HISTORY

t messages and calls with this contact
ow Up here.

HISTORY

Recent messages and calls with this contact
will shiow L Bere.

As the user scrolls till the point it crosses the end of "B" branch, "C" branch is entered, and the

container of the "B" branch is deleted from the sticky path window portion.
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People

CONTACTS +

| Search

B

W sums peee

e Burton CONTACTS

c Iiarch

© cavin IEI
o Catelyn C

O catherin © cabin
O crambers O e
0 o © catnerin
© chombers
0O o
© co-
O coleman

HISTORY

Recent messages and calls with this contact
will show up here,

HISTORY

Recent messages and calls with this contact
will show up here,

Paopie o x
CONTACTS HISTORY
| Search
B Recent messages and calls with this contact
l_,__l will show up here,
.,
[
~,
£y
el Y - -] ®
© cavin, \
b
oS CONTACTS HISTORY
Catslyn ™
° s, [sesren
2 Recent messages and calls with this contact
° Cathenin C will shaw up here,
© chembers © cain
° Clarke 0 cateyn
© coe © catnern
° Coleman ° Chombars
0 cark
© oo
‘ Coleman
II nir

In other words, when the scrolling continues past the end of the entries of a new branch, group or

level of the structure to exit it such that the entries of the new branch are no longer visible in the

view (e.g., a user scrolls past all contacts grouped in the "B" container), the new identifier of the

new branch is removed from the dynamically-updating sticky path display area (e.g., "B" is

removed from the sticky path display area) while any identifiers of previously-entered branches

remain until they in turn are exited (e.g., the "C" group is entered before the "B" group is exited,

and the "C" identifier remains until it is in turn exited).
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16. On or about November 9, 2009, Defendant received a letter informing it of the
'063 patent and potential uses by Defendant of the patented technology. The letter also offered
Defendant an opportunity to acquire the '063 patent.

17.  Defendant decided not to acquire the '063 patent.

18.  Defendant incorporated the claimed technology of the '063 patent into the accused
instrumentalities, as mentioned above, after receiving notice of the '063 patent.

19. eHierarchy is entitled to recover from Defendant the damages sustained by
eHierarchy as a result of Defendant's infringement of the '063 patent in an amount subject to
proof at trial, which, by law, cannot be less than a reasonable royalty, together with interest and
costs as fixed by this Court under 35 U.S.C. § 284.

COUNT II — INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 9,229,945

20. eHierarchy repeats and realleges the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 19 as if
fully set forth herein.

21. Without license or authorization and in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a), Defendant
is liable for infringement of at least claim 1 of the '945 patent by making, using, importing,
offering for sale, and/or selling systems and methods of management of informational objects by
a computer system, including, but not limited to, Surface Pro 4, Surface Book and Surface 3.

22.  More specifically and upon information and belief, Defendant's Surface Pro 4,
Surface Book and Surface 3 are computer data processing systems. See
https://www.microsoft.com/surface/en-us (last accessed May 25, 2016). Defendant's Surface
Book has an Intel Core processor ("a central processing unit"), Windows 10 Pro operating
system software ("computer control software system"), a 13.5" display ("computer display") and

it also supports up to 1 TB SSD storage device ("a computer readable memory"). Surface Book

10
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has a touch screen display and a keyboard/touchpad ("a computer user interface device") for
providing input. See https://www.microsoft.com/surface/en-us/devices/surface-book#techspec-
block (last accessed May 25, 2016). Surface Book comes with pre-installed People app ("an
applications program having component architecture code") that manages contacts ("information
data objects"). See  https://www.microsoft.com/surface/en-us/support/apps-and-windows-
store/all-about-apps?os=windows-10 (last accessed May 25, 2016);
http://www.gcflearnfree.org/windows8/11 (last accessed May 25, 2016);
http://www.thewindowsclub.com/link-unlink-contacts-windows-8-people-app  (last accessed
May 25, 2016). Surface Book with pre-installed People app, stores contacts in its storage device
such that details about a contact can be viewed by accessing the contact's name entry ("reference
objects") in the contact list. Further, People app stores labels that group the contacts with same
first alphabet of the first name in one group. These labels are identified as "A," "B" and so on

("foundation objects").

11
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[Surfacefstorage |

m=m= Pre-installed software and 2pps use a significant amaount of the internal

disk space on your Surface.

Apps pre-installed on vour Surface

Here are same of the apps that come reacly to go on your new Surface,

People

see each (Onlacts ermal address, phane number,

welbsite, and other informatian gf a glance.

Pecpis

CONTACTS + HISTORY

| Szarch |

Recent messages and calls with this contact
will show up here

Co
O o

B

O oy
© 5o
O oo
O o
W aran

Metadata related to contacts like phone numbers, email addresses and profile linkage ("link

metadata") are stored in a metadata structure ("catalog database").

12
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People

The People app brings all your contacts together in a single space. See each contact's email address, phone nurmber,
wekbsite, and other irformation &t a glance.

P e =) i 3
ms-people:viewcontact: parameter reference
Feople T T
Paramatar Descrigtion Example.
CONTACTS + His] Qptional. mi-peaple:viewcontct?
Contactid Comtact Id af the cantact. Contactid= (Contactid)
| Search | | !
Rec aptianal, ms-peopleviewmcontact?
will || phones PhoneNumber=5201425706932
B will | | PhosoNumbar Phcne numaer of the contact | | g
-
@ Bob aptionil. mi-peopleviewcontact?
Emadl Email of the contact Email=jonnsmith@cantsca.cam
o Bran
ptional, me-peopleviswcontact?
. Contacthame Mame of the contact Contacthames Jehamanssmitt
o Brian
. Optignal. ms-peaple:viewcontact?
o Briene Contact Contact abject. Contact=(Senslized Contact

° Burns
o Burton
C

= People
LINKS FOR BOB

Linking multiple profiles for this contact lets you see all their information in one place|

Micrasaft account

Baob

Grmail

Select a confact to link:

When a user adds an account in People app, the user is asked to select the account and provide

the account details.

13
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Import contacts

x
SETTINGS
Choose an account
= Addan account > o
— T
Micrasoft accoust
Contact list display
H Outlook.com
Sort contact |t by Cutleark.com, Lsecom, Hotmail, MGN
@ First Mame Exchange
Exchange, Office 365
O Surnanme
—
Display names by 5] Google st N
——
@ Farst namve, Suinane \ ""-—-..__“_
52 icioud e
O Surmame, First name oy e m——
..y S -
! < Pegpk Coanecting 1o 2 serice T
actaunts youl see ' —
SETTINGS N Google s yomaligmalioom = 1
About this app \ -
Micrasoft People 10.0.10500.0 Ak an Jl'foﬂn\l
© 2015 Microsoft Corpormtion. kY
A1
Contact list display - Windows would [k to:
A
Sort cantact list by AN
_ A
(®) First Name 5\ =1 e ot manage gour mai
o \
%
Sumname b = Finow mha you e o Grogle
1Y
Display names by kN
\
@ First name, Surnarme “ & Mew your emall addoss
Ay
N
O ‘Surname, First name (Y
\‘ Bl Wennge your camndars
Filter comtact list %
pick which accounts you'll see A,
I \\
A
. “
Abaut this app .
e —
Microsaft People 100105000 I thangs thiy and star ATror Perrtions i axy b
D 2013 Microsoft Corporation. ] W
¥
M
All done!

our accgunt was set up successfully,

2 alicevermansz@gmail.com

When the user provides correct account details, the account is added in People app such that the
contact can be imported from that account. When the account is added, People app syncs
contacts and details. For example, when a person's Gmail account is added, the contact details
(e.g., photo, email, phone number, etc. ("metadata")) are synced ("added") in People app from
the Gmail account. When People app syncs contacts, it automatically links similar contacts

synced from different accounts. People app manages and organizes the contacts from multiple

sources (e.g., Gmail and Microsoft accounts).

14
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Penple - a hS
CONTACTS —|— HISTORY
| Search

Recent messages and calls with this contact
B will show up here.
-
W Bob

° Bran

— People ’,” - n] A

LINKS FOR BOB
/

Linking multiple profiles for this cpﬁEact lets you see all their information in one place.

Linked profiles

Balb

Iicroeaft acoount

g DBab

. Gmail
Selecta contact to link

People app links and merges the contacts' details which are similar and stores a single contact

item ("reference object") for them.

15
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Using the People app

The People app is the central place for all your contacts, and it's one of the most important apps you'll use in Windows
8. The People app can also be integratad with your favorite social netwarks, such as Facebook and Twitter. In this

lesson, you'll learn how to add, manage, and organize your contacts, as well as how to connect your social natworks.

People

Source: hip:/fwww. gcflearnfree_org/windowss,11
COMTACTS

| Search

ADAM

Microsoft Accourt

Showing all
X

_______
=

0
6‘ Adarm

o‘\‘ Adrian
1

i
° Wlexander )
1Y Filter contacts
1
° Ahen Hicle contacts withaut phone mumbers
!
\ : @ off
° Andgrson
1
A

A
(] Andrd!.
O sy ‘\‘

Shiows anly the contacts that you can call or text. You can still find the rest
by searching.

Show contacts from

Gmall

1
‘\
\ Micrasoft Account
1
1
\
\
A
\
1)
1]
\
\

\
\
L}
1)
1
1

Surface Book with People app stores the contacts and displays them in a desktop style interface
(People App GUI).

16
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People

CONTACTS —|— HISTORY

| Search

Recent messages and calls with this contact
will show up here.

A
o Andra
O angy

Using People app, a user can input contacts and contact details either manually or import from

other accounts using touchscreen, keyboard, touchpad, etc.

Add contacts one at a time

1. On Start, tap or click People.

2, Swipe in from the bottom edge to see the app commands,
(If you're using a mouse, right-click within the app.)

3, Tap or click New contact,

4, Enter the info you want for this contact, and then tap or click the save button H

23. eHierarchy is entitled to recover from Defendant the damages sustained by
eHierarchy as a result of Defendant's infringement of the '945 patent in an amount subject to
proof at trial, which, by law, cannot be less than a reasonable royalty, together with interest and

costs as fixed by this Court under 35 U.S.C. § 284.

17
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COUNT IIT — INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 7.840.619

24. eHierarchy repeats and realleges the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 23 as if
fully set forth herein.

25. Without license or authorization and in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a), Defendant
is liable for infringement of at least claim 1 of the '945 patent by making, using, importing,
offering for sale, and/or selling computer data processing systems having a central processing
unit configured with an integrated computer control software system for the management of
informational objects relating to multiple levels of objects organized in at least one of an
expandable hierarchy structure and a group structure which include said objects, multiple
branches, groups, and/or levels of said objects and their container relationships, and names,
identifiers or location paths of said objects within said structure, including, but not limited to,
Windows Phones.

26. More specifically and upon information and belief, Defendant's Windows Phones
are computer data processing systems having a processor and running computer control software
for management of information (e.g., contact information). The Windows Phone operating
system provides User-Interface (UI) Element Framework for implementing graphical and event-
based applications. The UI Element Framework enables applications, such as the People app, to
manage information (e.g., contact information) that is organized in a grouped structure. That is,
all the contacts having first names starting with "a" could be considered to be grouped in
container "b" and all the contacts starting with "b" are grouped in container "b" and so on. The
relationship between contact information and the container is maintained in a memory by the

Windows Phone operating system.

18
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il

MAISIE

profile

call mobile
text+chat

write on wall

@0 @

In addition, at the top of People app, a "sticky path" is displayed showing the name of a container
(e.g., "a") which dynamically changes when the user scrolls into another group (e.g., contacts

corresponding to container "b").
a i

Barbara Bradford

Brandi Ortega

Bridgette Fields

Carissa Kaufman

Carmela Coleman

The information displayed in the "sticky path" is fixed (e.g., "a") until the user scrolls into
another group (e.g., "b"). See http://code.msdn.microsoft.com/wpapps/PeopleHub-Windows-

Phone-80-88abe94d  (last accessed May 25, 2016); http://msdn.microsoft.com/en-

19
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US/library/windowsphone/develop/microsoft.phone.controls.longlistselector(v=vs.105).aspx?cs-
save-lang=1&cs-lang=csharp#code-snippet-1 (last accessed May 25, 2016). Windows Phones
include computer readable memory that includes a storage structure for storing information
related to objects selected from at least one of the objects, the object metadata and the object
names, identifiers or location paths. A user's contacts are one example of objects that are stored
in a storage structure by the Windows devices. For example, when storing "People," the
Windows Phone memory also stores the information related to the objects such as first name, last
name, phone number, etc., and uses the stored information to create a storage structure. The first
name of a contact is used to organize the stored objects, and the contacts are grouped in
containers having identifiers (e.g., "a" is an identifier for a container of all objects having last
names  starting  with  "a"). See  http://www.windowsphone.com/en-US/how-
to/wp8/people/contacts (last accessed May 25, 2016). Windows Phones include a computer
display connected to a memory and displays objects, object metadata, and object identifiers from
said storage structure in a view. See id. The Windows Phone operating system includes a user
interface for selectively displaying a portion of a group structure. For example, the user interface
displays a portion of the People group structure, such as, in one example, a portion of the "a"
group of contacts, and the group structure is scrollable (i.e., a selective display). When a user
scrolls within the People app view, a sticky path display portion dynamically updates as a user
scrolls from one group (contacts with last names starting with "a") to another group (contacts
with last names starting with "b"). Windows Phones dynamically update the component
architecture code being processed. In a Windows Phone, when the scrolling continues past the
end of the entries of a new branch, group or level of the structure to exit it such that the entries of

the new branch are no longer visible in the view (e.g., a user scrolls past all contacts grouped in

20
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the "a" container), the new identifier of the new branch is removed from the dynamically-
updating sticky path display area (e.g., "a" is removed from the sticky path display area) while
any identifiers of previously-entered branches remain until they in turn are exited (e.g., the "b"
group is entered before the "a" group is exited, and the "b" identifier remains until it is in turn
exited). Thus, Windows Phones provide continuous and automatic dynamically-updated display
containing at least one sticky path display area that displays at least one branch identifier of the
structure (e.g., the sticky path portion continuously and automatically updates as the group
identifier, "a" updates to "b").

217. eHierarchy is entitled to recover from Defendant the damages sustained by
eHierarchy as a result of Defendant's infringement of the '619 patent in an amount subject to
proof at trial, which, by law, cannot be less than a reasonable royalty, together with interest and

costs as fixed by this Court under 35 U.S.C. § 284.

COUNT 1V — INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 8.280.932

28. eHierarchy repeats and realleges the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 27 as if
fully set forth herein.

29. Without license or authorization and in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a), Defendant
is liable for infringement of at least claim 1 of the '932 patent by making, using, importing,
offering for sale, and/or selling computer data processing systems, including, but not limited to,
Surface Pro 4, Surface Book and Surface 3.

30.  More specifically and upon information and belief, Defendant's Surface Pro 4,
Surface Book and Surface 3 includes a computer-readable memory. The Surface Pro 4, Surface
Book and Surface 3 all include Solid State Drives  (SSDs). See

https://www.microsoft.com/surface/en-
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us?&SEMID=1&WT.srch=1&0cid=OCWin10SurfGen SEM_GOO_MSBranded FAM en-
US_microsoft%20surface&wt.mc_id=OCWinl10SurfGen SEM GOO MSBranded FAM en-
US_ microsoft%20surface (last accessed May 25, 2016); https://www.microsoft.com/surface/en-
us/devices/surface-book#techspec-block (last accessed May 25, 2016). The computer-readable
memory of the Microsoft Surface series is configured to store informational objects organized in
a hierarchy. Microsoft Surface series comes with pre-installed Microsoft People. See
https://www.microsoft.com/surface/en-us/support/apps-and-windows-store/all-about-
apps?os=windows-10 (last accessed May 25, 2016); http://www.gcflearnfree.org/windows8/11
(last accessed May 25, 2016); http://www.thewindowsclub.com/link-unlink-contacts-windows-8-
people-app (last accessed May 25, 2016). Microsoft People is operable to access the computer-
readable memory and display the hierarchical relationship (e.g., sorted alphabetically) of the
informational objects (e.g., contacts). Microsoft Surface series includes a display configured to
display information of at least a portion of the hierarchy of informational objects. Microsoft
People displays several data fields relating to the objects stored in the hierarchy including
"Mobile Phone" and "Email." Microsoft People is an applications program operable to render
visible-information of one of the informational objects (e.g., the first letter of each contact name)
with dynamic updating. For example, Microsoft People displays the first letter of the each
contact (e.g., "A," "B," "C," etc.) in a sticky path portion of the display. The sticky path portion
of the display updates as a user scrolls through contacts. Microsoft People is further operable to
expand and collapse the hierarchical information displayed on the right of the display window.
Clicking on a contact name expands that contact's information; clicking on a different contact

name, collapses the first contact’s information and expands the second contact's information.
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31. eHierarchy is entitled to recover from Defendant the damages sustained by
eHierarchy as a result of Defendant's infringement of the '932 patent in an amount subject to
proof at trial, which, by law, cannot be less than a reasonable royalty, together with interest and
costs as fixed by this Court under 35 U.S.C. § 284.

JURY DEMAND

eHierarchy hereby demands a trial by jury on all issues so triable.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, eHierarchy requests that this Court enter judgment against Defendant as
follows:

A. An adjudication that Defendant has infringed the '063, '945, 619 and '932 patents;

B. An award of damages to be paid by Defendant adequate to compensate
eHierarchy for Defendant's past infringement of the '063, '945, '619 and '932 patents and any
continuing or future infringement through the date such judgment is entered, including interest,
costs, expenses and an accounting of all infringing acts including, but not limited to, those acts
not presented at trial;

C. A declaration that this case is exceptional under 35 U.S.C. § 285, and an award of
eHierarchy's reasonable attorneys' fees;

D. To the extent the Defendant's conduct subsequent to the date of its notice of the
'063 patent is found to be objectively reckless, enhanced damages pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284
for Defendant's willful infringement of the '063 patent; and

E. An award to eHierarchy of such further relief at law or in equity as the Court

deems just and proper.
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Dated: May 25, 2016

/s/ Richard C. Weinblatt

Stamatios Stamoulis DE SB #4606
Richard C. Weinblatt DE SB #5080 — Lead Counsel
Stamoulis & Weinblatt LLC

Two Fox Point Centre

6 Denny Road, Suite 307
Wilmington, DE 19809
Telephone: (302) 999-1540
Facsimile: (302) 762-1688
stamoulis@swdelaw.com
weinblatt@swdelaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff
eHierarchy LLC
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